
KASSON CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
Wednesday, August 9, 2017  

 
PLEDGE OF ALLIEGANCE 
 
6:00 A. COUNCIL  
  

1. Approve agenda - Make additions, deletions or corrections at this time. 
2. Consent Agenda - All matters listed under Item 2, Consent Agenda, are considered to be routine and non-

controversial by the City Council and will be enacted with one motion.  There will not be separate discussion of these 
items unless a Council Member so requests, in which case the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will 

be considered separately.   
 

a. July 26, 2017 Regular Meeting Minutes  
 

b. Claims processed after the July 26, 2017 regular meeting, as audited for payment 
 

c. Acknowledgement of Committee Meeting Minutes: 
 

d. Evaluations: 
 

e. Conferences: 
i.  Krista Weigel Excellence in Victim Services Sept 21-22   St. Cloud, MN     $50 plus expenses 

 
f. Resolution Certifying Unpaid Rental Registrations to County Auditor 

 
g. SEMCAC Agreement 

 
h. Resolution Waiving Noise Ordinance for Fire Department August 12, 2017 

 
i. Resolution Waiving Noise Ordinance for 504 Tavern, August 26, 2017 

 
B. VISITORS TO THE COUNCIL 
  1.  COMPAS – Kyle Haemig 
  

 C. PUBLIC FORUM 
· May not be used to continue discussion on an agenda item that already had been held as a public hearing. 
· This section is limited to 15 minutes and each speaker is limited to 4 minutes. 
· Speakers not heard will be first to present at the next Council meeting. 
· Speakers will only be recognized once. 
· Matters under negotiation, litigation or related to personnel will not be discussed. 
· Questions posed by a speaker will generally be responded to in writing. 
· Speakers will be required to state their name and their address for the record. 

    
 D. PUBLIC HEARING  
 

E. COMMITTEE REPORT 
   

 F. OLD BUSINESS 
   
 G. NEW BUSINESS 



  1.  Summer Reading Report and Awards 
2.  Audit Services 

  3.  Set Budget and levy Dates – Change December 27 meeting to December 20 
  4.  Owners as Utility Customers 
 
 H. MAYOR’S REPORT 

    
I. ADMINISTRATORS REPORT 
   

 J. ENGINEER’S REPORT 
1. Master Contract with MnDOT  

a. Resolution Approving Master Contract with MnDOT 

b. Master Partnership Contract 04-20-2017 

c. MnDOT Table of Services 

 

2. 2017 Pavement Maintenance – 3
rd

 Street NE Quote Tabulation 

3.  Resolution Awarding 2017 Concrete Maintenance Project Quote 
  

K. PERSONNEL 
  

 L. ATTORNEY 
  1.  Approve Petition and Waiver for Improvements on Private Property 
  2.  Closed Session – Purchase Agreement for street behind Liquor Store 
 
 M. CORRESPONDENCE  

 1. Pay Study Update 
 2. July Police Stats 
  
N. ADJOURN  



Please go to www.cityofkasson.com for full video 
 

KASSON CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
July 26, 2017 

 
Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular City Council meeting was held at City Hall on the 26th 
day of July, 2017 at 6:00 P.M. 
 
THE FOLLOWING MEMBERS WERE PRESENT: Borgstrom, Buck, Eggler, McKern and Zelinske  
 
THE FOLLOWING MEMBERS WERE ABSENT:  None 
 
THE FOLLOWING WERE ALSO PRESENT:  City Administrator Theresa Coleman, City Clerk Linda Rappe, 
City Engineer Brandon Theobald, City Attorney Melanie Leth, Finance Director Nancy Zaworski, Public 
Works Director Charlie Bradford, David Dubbels, Tony Bigelow, Tara Lindquist, Everett Paulson and Mike 
Bubany. 
  
Mayor McKern called the meeting to order at 6:00 P.M.  
PLEDGE OF ALLIEGANCE 
 
COUNCIL 
Add: G.1 Mill and Overlay for 3rd St NE 
Add:  M.3 Fire Department Report 
Mayors report, concrete sawing announcement and update on comp plan meeting last night 
Add: M.4 Letter from Betty Brandli 
Replace A.2.g - updated 
Motion to Approve the Amended Agenda made by Councilmember Eggler, second by Councilmember 
Borgstrom with all voting Aye. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA   
July 12, 2017 Regular Meeting Minutes  

 
Claims processed after the July 12, 2017 regular meeting, as audited for payment in the amount of 
$1,606,371.29. 

 
Acknowledgement of Committee Meeting Minutes: 

Park Board Minutes – June 20, 2017 
Planning Commission – May 8, 2017 
Planning Commission – June 12, 2017 
Planning Commission – July 10, 2017 DRAFT 
Library Board Minutes – March 2017 
Library Board Minutes – April 2017 
Library Board Minutes – May 2017 
Library Board Minutes – June 2017 

 
Evaluations: None 
Conferences: 
Gerald Runnells Region 18 National K9 Seminar Rochester, MN Oct16-20   Approx.  $175  
Nancy Zaworski MGFOA Annual Conf Alexandria, MN 9-27-29   Approx $225 

http://www.cityofkasson.com/


July 26, 2017 Kasson City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

 2 

Linda Rappe  Advanced Academy Owatonna, MN 9/21-22   Approx $115 
 

Festival in the Park Resolutions: 
Resolution #7.2-17 

Resolution Waiving Park Hours for Festival in the Park a Special Event 
(on file) 

 
Resolution #7.3-17 

Resolution Approving Street Closings for Festival in the Park Activities 
(on file) 

 
Resolution #7.4-17 

Resolution Appointing Festival in the Park Volunteers 
(on file) 

 
Resolution Certifying Delinquent Claims and Utility Bills to County 

Resolution #7.5-17 
Resolution Certifying Delinquent Utilities to the County Auditor 

(on file) 
 

Resolution waiving Noise Ordinance for American Legion Special Event 
Resolution #7.6-17 

Resolution Waiving Section 95.22 of the Noise Ordinance on August 11, 2017 for A Special Event at the 
Kasson American Legion 

(on file) 
 

Temporary Liquor License for American Legion Special Event August 11, 2017 
  
Motion to Approve the Consent Agenda made by Councilmember Buck, second by Councilmember 
Eggler with all voting Aye. 
 
VISITORS TO THE COUNCIL - Capital Improvement Plan – Mike Bubany, David Drown & Associates. 
The Council Agreed to Move Mr. Bubany to end of meeting, 
 
PUBLIC FORUM - None 
PUBLIC HEARING - None  
COMMITTEE REPORT – Planning Commission  
Annexation Resolution for Houston’s First Subdivision – Administrator Coleman explained that this falls 
under the orderly annexation agreement and will be approved by Mantorville Township at their next 
meeting.  Motion to Approve the Annexation Pursuant to the Orderly Annexation Agreement made by 
Councilperson Buck, second by Councilperson Eggler with all voting Aye. 

Resolution #7.7-17 
Resolution Ordering Annexation Pursuant to the Terms of the Orderly Annexation Agreement Between 

Mantorville Township and the City of Kasson, and Minnesota State Statute §414.0325 
(on file) 



July 26, 2017 Kasson City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

 3 

Preliminary Plat Resolution for Houston’s First Subdivision – Administrator Coleman stated that the 
Planning Commission recommended approval.  Motion to Approve the Resolution made by 
Councilperson Borgstrom, second by Councilperson Zelinske with all voting Aye. 

Resolution #7.8-17 
Resolution Approving the Preliminary Plat of Houston’s First Subdivision 

(on file) 
 
Revocation of Conditional Use Permit for Davidson Developments LLC – Administrator Coleman stated 
that this is an instance where a conditional use permit was issued and nothing was done on the 
property.  Motion to Revoke the Consitional Use Permit made by Councilperson Eggler, second by 
Councilperson Borgstrom with all voting Aye. 

Resolution #7.9-17 
Resolution Revoking Conditional Use Permit 2015-2 Issued to Davidson Developments, LLC 

(on file) 
 
Denial of Conditional Use Permit Application for Chad Stannard – Administrator Coleman stated that 
since the Planning Commission meeting Mr. Stannard has brought another conditional Use Permit with 
the appropriate attachments and check for the next Planning Commission meeting in August.   Motion 
to deny the Conditional Use Permit made by Councilperson Buck, second by Councilperson Zelinske 
with all voting Aye. 
 
General Development Plan for Meadowbrook II – the Planning Commission recommended approval at 
the July 10 meeting.  Motion to Approve the General Development Plan made by Councilperson Buck, 
second by Councilperson Borgstrom with all voting Aye. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
Amendment to fee schedule adopting electric rates – Administrator Coleman stated that this will be 
published a week from tomorrow and then will be part of the Ordinance.  Councilperson Zelinske 
confirmed that Councilperson Borgstrom has talked to Elite Marketing to see if this is ok with him.   
Motion Approve the Amended Fee Schedule made by Councilperson Eggler, second by Councilperson 
Buck with all voting Aye. 
 
Rental Housing Registrations – Administrator Coleman stated that the City still have nine rental 
properties; seven have had previous rental registration and two that have not responded to requests.    
The City ordinance states that a violation is a misdemeanor and in the past we have certified the fees to 
taxes.  Mayor McKern made a motion to send the fees to county for assessing to taxes, second by 
Councilperson Eggler with all voting Aye. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS – Mill and Overlay on 3rd St NE – Mayor McKern stated that he has had several 
complaints from residents and the parade with be using that street this year.  This is on the schedule to 
be done next year and he has discussed this with Councilperson Buck and it would not make sense to 
patch it this year and then tear it up for overlay next year.  This would be from Mantorville Ave to 6th 
Ave. and there is money in the stabilization fund.  City Engineer Brandon Theobald got preliminary 
numbers and it would be approx. $90K to mill and overlay and they can get it done by August 11.  
Councilperson Zelinske asked what the condition of infrastructure under the street.  Public Works 
Director Bradford doesn’t think they would have to be in there replacing anything for at least 10 years 



July 26, 2017 Kasson City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

 4 

barring any breaks or emergencies.  Motion to have the City Engineer get at least 3 quotes and as long 
as they come in below $90K with a penalty clause to be finished by August 11, 2017, the City 
Administrator may enter into a contract with funds coming from the stabilization fund made by 
Councilperson Buck, second by Councilperson Eggler with all voting Aye. 
 
MAYOR’S REPORT – Mayor McKern stated that the Comprehensive Plan meeting held at the High School 
the night before had about 35-40 citizens besides the working group attend.  The Mayor has extra game 
boards and would entertain letting people do this if they contacted him.  Councilperson Eggler stated 
that Just Like Home Child Care had the kids do this today and they came up with some interesting ideas.   

 
Mayor McKern stated that the County would like to announce that they will be sawing concrete 
overnight for a few nights on the County 21 project.   
 
ADMINISTRATORS REPORT - none 
ENGINEER’S REPORT - none 
PERSONNEL - none 
 
ATTORNEY 
Labor Negotiations Attorney Proposals – City Attorney Leth outlined the quotes from Susan Hanson of 
Madden, Galanter and Hansen, LLP and Tiffany Schmidt of Abrams & Schmidt.  Councilperson Borgstrom 
stated that he liked her work in what she handled for us before and she works more for the employer 
and not the employees.  Councilperson Buck agreed with Borgstrom and wants someone who is working 
for the City.  Motion to approve Madden, Galanter and Hanson quote made by Councilperson Buck, 
second by Councilperson Borgstrom with all voting Aye.   
 
CORRESPONDENCE – Correspondence was reviewed 
 
Mike Bubany – Capital Improvement Plan –Mr. Bubany went over the Capital Improvement module and 
what happens to all of the statistics with the expenditure of projects and with the paying down of debts.   

 
ADJOURN 7:25 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________    __________________________ 
Linda Rappe, City Clerk     Chris McKern, Mayor   































































CITY OF KASSON 

RESOLUTION #8.X-17 

 

RESOLUTION CERTIFYING DELINQUENT UTILITIES 

 TO THE DODGE COUNTY AUDITOR 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Kasson requires registration of rental properties within the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, payment is due failure to register a property is a violation of the City Code; and 

 

WHEREAS, unpaid charges may be certified to the Dodge County Auditor for collection;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KASSON, 

MINNESOTA: 

 

 The City Administrator is hereby authorized to certify to these charges: 

 

1. Michael Hawkins 201 3
rd

 St NE    Rental Registration $125.00 

    PID# 24.000.0000 

 

2. Tony Saker  17 5
th
 St NW   Rental Registration $125.00 

    PID# 24.000.0000 

    307 3
rd

 St NW   Rental Registration $125.00 

    PID# 24.000.0000 

 

4 Curbside Properties 403 S. Mantorville Ave   Rental Registration $125.00 

    PID# 24.000.0000 

    407 S. Mantorville Ave  Rental Registration $125.00 

    PID# 24.000.0000 

 

6. JW Construction 205 & 207 6
th
 St NW  Rental Registration $135.00 

    PID# 24.000.0000 

    602 3
rd

 Ave NW  Rental Registration $110.00 

    PID# 24.000.0000 

 

8. J C Nerstad Rentals 302 6
th
 St SW   Rental Registration $365.00 

    PID# 24.000.0000 

 

9. Chad Spinler   712 South Fork Place  Rental Registration $125.00 

    PID# 24.000.0000 

 

The County Auditor shall collect these charges, including 9% interest, along with the 2017 property taxes 

collectable in 2018. 

 

ADOPTED this 9th day of August, 2017.  
 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________    _____________________ 

Chris McKern, Mayor      Linda Rappe, City Clerk 

 

The motion for the adoption of the foregoing resolution was made by Council Member ____r and duly 

seconded by Council Member ____.  Upon a vote being taken, the following members voted in favor 

thereof  ______________________.   Those against same: ______. 

 







CITY OF KASSON 

RESOLUTION #8.x-17 

 

  RESOLUTION WAIVING SECTION 95.22 OF THE NOISE ORDINANCE ON 

AUGUST 12, 2017 FOR A SPECIAL EVENT AT THE  

KASSON FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 

WHEREAS, the Kasson Fire Department has a special event planned for August 12, 

2017, and 

 

WHEREAS, The Kasson Fire Department is having a band play outdoors until Midnight, 

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

KASSON, MINNESOTA: 

 

Section 95.22 of the Kasson City Code of Ordinances will be waived and extended until 

midnight on August 12, 2016 for the Special Event being held by the Kasson Fire 

Department at 19 E Main Street.  

 

ADOPTED this 9
th

 day of August, 2017 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________   _______________________ 

Chris McKern, Mayor     Linda Rappe, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The motion for the adoption of the foregoing resolution was made by Council Member --

and duly seconded by Council Member --.  Upon a vote being taken, the following 

members voted in favor thereof: ---.  Those against same: --. 
 



CITY OF KASSON 

RESOLUTION #8.x-17 

 

  RESOLUTION WAIVING SECTION 95.22 OF THE NOISE ORDINANCE ON 

AUGUST 26, 2017 FOR A SPECIAL EVENT AT THE  

504 TAVERN 

 

WHEREAS, the 504 Tavern has a special event planned for August 26, 2017, and 

 

WHEREAS, The 504 Tavern is having a band play outdoors until Midnight, 

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

KASSON, MINNESOTA: 

 

Section 95.22 of the Kasson City Code of Ordinances will be waived and extended until 

midnight on August 26, 2016 for the Special Event being held by the 504 Tavern at 504 S 

Mantorville Ave.  

 

ADOPTED this 9
th

 day of August, 2017 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________   _______________________ 

Chris McKern, Mayor     Linda Rappe, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The motion for the adoption of the foregoing resolution was made by Council Member --

and duly seconded by Council Member --.  Upon a vote being taken, the following 

members voted in favor thereof: ---.  Those against same: --. 
 









CITY OF KASSON 

RESOLUTION # 8.X-17 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING MASTER PARTNERSHIP CONTRACT 
 

WHEREAS, The Minnesota Department of Transportation wishes to cooperate closely 

with local units of government to coordinate the delivery of transportation services and 

maximize the efficient delivery of such services at all levels of government; and 

 

WHEREAS, MnDOT and local governments are authorized by Minnesota Statutes 

sections 471.59, 174.02, and 161.20, to undertake collaborative efforts for the design, 

construction, maintenance and operation of state and local roads; and 

 

WHEREAS, the parties wish to able to respond quickly and efficiently to such 

opportunities for collaboration, and have determined that having the ability to write 

“work orders” against a master contract would provide the greatest speed and flexibility 

in responding to identified needs. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF KASSON, 

MINNESOTA 
 

1. That the City of Kasson  enter into a Master Partnership Contract with the 

Minnesota Department of Transportation, a copy of which was before the 

Council. 

 

2. That the proper City officers are authorized to execute such contract, and any 

amendments thereto. 

 

3. That the Kasson City Engineer is authorized to negotiate work order contracts 

pursuant to the Master Contract, which work order contracts may provide for 

payment to or from MnDOT, and that the City Engineer may execute such work 

order contracts on behalf of the City of Kasson without further approval by this 

Council. 

 

 

ADOPTED this 9
th

 day of August, 2017. 

 

 

ATTEST:   

 

 

 

_____________________________   ________________________ 

Linda Rappe, City Clerk    Chris McKern, Mayor 

 

The motion for the adoption of the foregoing resolution was made by Council Member --

and duly seconded by Council Member --.  Upon a vote being taken, the following 

members voted in favor thereof: ---.  Those against same: --. 



  MnDOT Contract Number:   1028504 

 

Page 1 of 13 
 

CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017) 

 
 

 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 

AND 

CITY OF KASSON 

MASTER PARTNERSHIP CONTRACT 

 

This master contract is between the State of Minnesota, acting through its Commissioner of Transportation in this contract 

referred to as the “State” and the City of KASSON, acting through its City Council, in this contract referred to as the 

“Local Government." 

Recitals 

1. The parties are authorized to enter into this contract pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, §§15.061, 471.59 and 174.02.  

2. Minn. Stat. § 161.20, subd. 2, authorizes the Commissioner of Transportation to make arrangements with and 

cooperate with any governmental authority for the purposes of constructing, maintaining and improving the trunk 

highway system.  

3. Each party to this contract is a “road authority” as defined by Minn. Stat. §160.02, subd. 25. 

4. Minn. Stat. § 161.39, subd. 1, authorizes a road authority to perform work for another road authority. Such work 

may include providing technical and engineering advice, assistance and supervision, surveying, preparing plans 

for the construction or reconstruction of roadways, and performing roadway maintenance.  

5. Minn. Stat. §174.02, subd. 6, authorizes the Commissioner of Transportation to enter into contracts with other 

governmental entities for research and experimentation; for sharing facilities, equipment, staff, data, or other 

means of providing transportation-related services; or for other cooperative programs that promote efficiencies in 

providing governmental services, or that further development of innovation in transportation for the benefit of the 

citizens of Minnesota.  

6. Each party wishes to occasionally purchase services from the other party, which the parties agree will enhance the 

efficiency of delivering governmental services at all levels. This Master Partnership Contract (MPC) provides a 

framework for the efficient handling of such requests. This MPC contains terms generally governing the 

relationship between the parties. When specific services are requested, the parties will (unless otherwise specified) 

enter into a “Work Order” contracts. 

7. After the execution of this MPC, the parties may (but are not required to) enter into “Work Order” contracts. 

These Work Orders will specify the work to be done, timelines for completion, and compensation to be paid for 

the specific work. 

8. The parties are entering into this MPC to establish terms that will govern all of the Work Orders subsequently 

issued under the authority of this Contract. 

 

Master Partnership Contract 

1. Term of Master Partnership Contract; Use of Work Order Contracts; Survival of Terms 

1.1. Effective Date: This contract will be effective on the date last signed by the Local Government, and all 

State officials as required under Minn. Stat. § 16C.05, subd. 2.  

1.2. A party must not accept work under this Contract until it is fully executed.  

1.3. Expiration Date. This Contract will expire on June 30, 2022. 



  MnDOT Contract Number:   1028504 

 

Page 2 of 13 
 

CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017) 

 
 

1.4. Work Order Contracts. A work order contract must be negotiated and executed (by both the State and the 

Local Government) for each particular engagement, except for Technical Services provided by the State 

to the Local Government as specified in Article 2. The work order contract must specify the detailed 

scope of work and deliverables for that project. A party must not begin work under a work order until the 

work order is fully executed. The terms of this MPC will apply to all work orders contracts issued, unless 

specifically varied in the work order. The Local Government understands that this MPC is not a guarantee 

of any payments or work order assignments, and that payments will only be issued for work actually 

performed under fully-executed work orders.  

1.5. Survival of Terms. The following clauses survive the expiration or cancellation of this master contract 

and all work order contracts: 12. Liability; 13. State Audits; 14. Government Data Practices and 

Intellectual Property; 17. Publicity; 18. Governing Law, Jurisdiction, and Venue; and 22. Data Disclosure. 

All terms of this MPC will survive with respect to any work order contract issued prior to the expiration 

date of the MPC.  

1.6. Sample Work Order. A sample work order contract is available upon request from the State. 

1.7. Definition of “Providing Party” and “Requesting Party”. For the purpose of assigning certain duties and 

obligations in the MPC to work order contracts, the following definitions will apply throughout the MPC. 

“Requesting Party” is defined as the party requesting the other party to perform work under a work order 

contract. “Providing Party” is defined as the party performing the scope of work under a work order 

contract. 

2. Technical Services 

2.1. Technical Services include repetitive low-cost services routinely performed by the State for the Local 

Government. These services may be performed by the State for the Local Government without the 

execution of a work order, as these services are provided in accordance with standardized practices and 

processes and do not require a detailed scope of work. Exhibit A – Table of Technical Services is 

attached.  

2.1.1. Every other service not falling under the services listed in Exhibit A will require a work order 

contract. 

2.2. The Local Government may request the State to perform Technical Services in an informal manner, such 

as by the use of email, a purchase order, or by delivering materials to a State lab and requesting testing. A 

request may be made via telephone, but will not be considered accepted unless acknowledged in writing 

by the State.  

2.3. The State will promptly inform the Local Government if the State will be unable to perform the requested 

Technical Services. Otherwise, the State will perform the Technical Services in accordance with the 

State’s normal processes and practices, including scheduling practices taking into account the availability 

of State staff and equipment.  

2.4. Payment Basis. Unless otherwise agreed to by the parties prior to performance of the services, the State 

will charge the Local Government the State’s then-current rate for performing the Technical Services. 

The then-current rate may include the State’s normal and customary additives. The State will invoice the 

Local Government upon completion of the services, or at regular intervals not more than once monthly as 

agreed upon by the parties. The invoice will provide a summary of the Technical Services provided by the 

State during the invoice period. 

3. Services Requiring A Work Order Contract 

3.1. Work Order Contracts: A party may request the other party to perform any of the following services 

under individual work order contracts.  



  MnDOT Contract Number:   1028504 

 

Page 3 of 13 
 

CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017) 

 
 

3.2. Professional and Technical Services. A party may provide professional and technical services upon the 

request of the other party. As defined by Minn. Stat. §16C.08, subd. 1, professional/technical services 

“means services that are intellectual in character, including consultation, analysis, evaluation, prediction, 

planning, programming, or recommendation; and result in the production of a report or completion of a 

task.” Professional and technical services do not include providing supplies or materials except as 

incidental to performing such services. Professional and technical services include (by way of example 

and without limitation) engineering services, surveying, foundation recommendations and reports, 

environmental documentation, right-of-way assistance (such as performing appraisals or providing 

relocation assistance, but excluding the exercise of the power of eminent domain), geometric layouts, 

final construction plans, graphic presentations, public relations, and facilitating open houses. A party will 

normally provide such services with its own personnel; however, a party’s professional/technical services 

may also include hiring and managing outside consultants to perform work provided that a party itself 

provides active project management for the use of such outside consultants. 

3.3. Roadway Maintenance. A party may provide roadway maintenance upon the request of the other party. 

Roadway maintenance does not include roadway reconstruction. This work may include but is not limited 

to snow removal, ditch spraying, roadside mowing, bituminous mill and overlay (only small projects), 

seal coat, bridge hits, major retaining wall failures, major drainage failures, and message painting. All 

services must be performed by an employee with sufficient skills, training, expertise or certification to 

perform such work, and work must be supervised by a qualified employee of the party performing the 

work.  

3.4. Construction Administration. A party may administer roadway construction projects upon the request of 

the other party. Roadway construction includes (by way of example and without limitation) the 

construction, reconstruction, or rehabilitation of mainline, shoulder, median, pedestrian or bicycle 

pathway, lighting and signal systems, pavement mill and overlays, seal coating, guardrail installation, and 

channelization. These services may be performed by the Providing Party’s own forces, or the Providing 

Party may administer outside contracts for such work. Construction administration may include letting 

and awarding construction contracts for such work (including state projects to be completed in 

conjunction with local projects). All contract administration services must be performed by an employee 

with sufficient skills, training, expertise or certification to perform such work. 

3.5. Emergency Services. A party may provide aid upon request of the other party in the event of a man-made 

disaster, natural disaster or other act of God. Emergency services includes all those services as the parties 

mutually agree are necessary to plan for, prepare for, deal with, and recover from emergency situations. 

These services include, without limitation, planning, engineering, construction, maintenance, and removal 

and disposal services related to things such as road closures, traffic control, debris removal, flood 

protection and mitigation, sign repair, sandbag activities and general cleanup. Work will be performed by 

an employee with sufficient skills, training, expertise or certification to perform such work, and work 

must be supervised by a qualified employee of the party performing the work. If it is not feasible to have 

an executed work order prior to performance of the work, the parties will promptly confer to determine 

whether work may be commenced without a fully-executed work order in place. If work commences 

without a fully-executed work order, the parties will follow up with execution of a work order as soon as 

feasible. 

3.6. When a need is identified, the State and the Local Government will discuss the proposed work and the 

resources needed to perform the work. If a party desires to perform such work, the parties will negotiate 

the specific and detailed work tasks and cost. The State will then prepare a work order contract. 

Generally, a work order contract will be limited to one specific project/engagement, although “on call” 

work orders may be prepared for certain types of services, especially for “Technical Services” items as 

identified section 2.1.. The work order will also identify specific deliverables required, and timeframes for 

completing work. A work order must be fully executed by the parties prior to work being commenced. 



  MnDOT Contract Number:   1028504 

 

Page 4 of 13 
 

CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017) 

 
 

The Local Government will not be paid for work performed prior to execution of a work order contract 

and authorization by the State. 

4. Responsibilities of the Providing Party 

 

4.1. Terms Applicable to ALL Work Order Contracts. The terms in this section 4.1 will apply to ALL work 

order contracts. 

4.1.1. Each work order will identify an Authorized Representative for each party. Each party’s 

authorized representative is responsible for administering the work order, and has the authority to 

make any decisions regarding the work, and to give and receive any notices required or permitted 

under this MPC or the work order. 

4.1.2. The Providing Party will furnish and assign a publicly employed licensed engineer (Project 

Engineer), to be in responsible charge of the project(s) and to supervise and direct the work to be 

performed under each work order contract. For services not requiring an engineer, the Providing 

Party will furnish and assign another responsible employee to be in charge of the project. The 

services of the Providing Party under a work order contract may not be otherwise assigned, 

sublet, or transferred unless approved in writing by the Requesting Party’s authorized 

representative. This written consent will in no way relieve the Providing Party from its primary 

responsibility for the work.  

4.1.3. If the Local Government is the Providing Party, the Project Engineer may request in writing 

specific engineering and/or technical services from the State, pursuant to Minn. Stat. Section 

161.39. The work order Contract will require the Local Government to deposit payment in 

advance. The costs and expenses will include the current State additives and overhead rates, 

subject to adjustment based on actual direct costs that have been verified by audit. 

4.1.4. Only the receipt of a fully executed work order contract authorizes the Providing Party to begin 

work on a project. Any and all effort, expenses, or actions taken by the Providing Party before the 

work order contract is fully executed are considered unauthorized and undertaken at the risk of 

non-payment. 

4.1.5. In connection with the performance of this contract and any work orders issued, the Providing 

Agency will comply with all applicable Federal and State laws and regulations. When the 

Providing Party is authorized or permitted to award contracts in connection with any work order, 

the Providing Party will require and cause its contractors and subcontractors to comply with all 

Federal and State laws and regulations. 

4.2. Additional Terms for Roadway Maintenance. The terms of section 4.1 and this section 4.2 will apply to 

all work orders for Roadway Maintenance. 

4.2.1. Unless otherwise provided for by contract or work order, the Providing Party must obtain all 

permits and sanctions that may be required for the proper and lawful performance of the work. 

4.2.2. The Providing Party must perform maintenance in accordance with MnDOT maintenance 

manuals, policies and operations. 

4.2.3. The Providing Party must use State-approved materials, including (by way of example and without 

limitation), sign posts, sign sheeting, and de-icing and anti-icing chemicals. 

4.3. Additional Terms for Construction Administration. The terms of section 4.1 and this section 4.3 will 

apply to all work order contracts for construction administration. 

4.3.1. Contract(s) must be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder or best value proposer in 

accordance with state law. 



  MnDOT Contract Number:   1028504 

 

Page 5 of 13 
 

CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017) 

 
 

4.3.2. Contractor(s) must be required to post payment and performance bonds in an amount equal to the 

contract amount. The Providing Party will take all necessary action to make claims against such 

bonds in the event of any default by the contractor. 

4.3.3. Contractor(s) must be required to perform work in accordance with the latest edition of the 

Minnesota Department of Transportation Standard Specifications for Construction. 

4.3.4. For work performed on State right-of-way, contractor(s) must be required to indemnify and hold 

the State harmless against any loss incurred with respect to the performance of the contracted 

work, and must be required to provide evidence of insurance coverage commensurate with project 

risk. 

4.3.5. Contractor(s) must pay prevailing wages pursuant to applicable state and federal law. 

4.3.6. Contractor(s) must comply with all applicable Federal, and State laws, ordinances and 

regulations, including but not limited to applicable human rights/anti-discrimination laws and 

laws concerning the participation of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in federally-assisted 

contracts. 

4.3.7. Unless otherwise agreed in a work order contract, each party will be responsible for providing 

rights of way, easement, and construction permits for its portion of the improvements. Each party 

will, upon the other’s request, furnish copies of right of way certificates, easements, and 

construction permits. 

4.3.8. The Providing Party may approve minor changes to the Requesting Party’s portion of the project 

work if such changes do not increase the Requesting Party’s cost obligation under the applicable 

work order contract. 

4.3.9. The Providing Party will not approve any contractor claims for additional compensation without 

the Requesting Party’s written approval, and the execution of a proper amendment to the 

applicable work order contract when necessary. The Local Government will tender the processing 

and defense of any such claims to the State upon the State’s request. 

4.3.10. The Local Government must coordinate all trunk highway work affecting any utilities with the 

State’s Utilities Office. 

4.3.11. The Providing Party must coordinate all necessary detours with the Requesting Party.  

4.3.12. If the Local Government is the Providing Party, and there is work performed on the trunk 

highway right-of-way, the following will apply: 

4.3.12.1 The Local Government will have a permit to perform the work on the trunk highway. 

The State may revoke this permit if the work is not being performed in a safe, proper 

and skillful manner, or if the contractor is violating the terms of any law, regulation, or 

permit applicable to the work. The State will have no liability to the Local Government, 

or its contractor, if work is suspended or stopped due to any such condition or concern. 

4.3.12.2 The Local Government will require its contractor to conduct all traffic control in 

accordance with the Minnesota Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices. 

4.3.12.3 The Local Government will require its contractor to comply with the terms of all 

permits issued for the project including, but not limited to, National Pollutant 

Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) and other environmental permits. 

4.3.12.4 All improvements constructed on the State’s right-of-way will become the property of 

the State. 

5. Responsibilities of the Requesting Party 



  MnDOT Contract Number:   1028504 

 

Page 6 of 13 
 

CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017) 

 
 

5.1. After authorizing the Providing Party to begin work, the Requesting Party will furnish any data or 

material in its possession relating to the project that may be of use to the Providing Party in performing 

the work. 

5.2. All such data furnished to the Providing Party will remain the property of the Requesting Party and will 

be promptly returned upon the Requesting Party’s request or upon the expiration or termination of this 

contract (subject to data retention requirements of the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act and 

other applicable law). 

5.3. The Providing Party will analyze all such data furnished by the Requesting Party. If the Providing Party 

finds any such data to be incorrect or incomplete, the Providing Party will bring the facts to the attention 

of the Requesting Party before proceeding with the part of the project affected. The Providing Party will 

investigate the matter, and if it finds that such data is incorrect or incomplete, it will promptly determine a 

method for furnishing corrected data. Delay in furnishing data will not be considered justification for an 

adjustment in compensation. 

5.4. The State will provide to the Local Government copies of any Trunk Highway fund clauses to be included 

in the bid solicitation and will provide any required Trunk Highway fund provisions to be included in the 

Proposal for Highway Construction, that are different from those required for State Aid construction. 

5.5. The Requesting Party will perform final reviews and inspections of its portion of the project work. If the 

work is found to have been completed in accordance with the work order contract, the Requesting Party 

will promptly release any remaining funds due the Providing Party for the Project(s). 

5.6. The work order contracts may include additional responsibilities to be completed by the Requesting Party. 

6. Time 

In the performance of project work under a work order contract, time is of the essence. 

7. Consideration and Payment 

7.1. Consideration. The Requesting Party will pay the Providing Party as specified in the work order. The 

State’s normal and customary additives will apply to work performed by the State, unless otherwise 

specified in the work order. The State’s normal and customary additives will not apply if the parties agree 

to a “lump sum” or “unit rate” payment. 

7.2. State’s Maximum Obligation. The total compensation to be paid by the State to the 

Local Government under all work order contracts issued pursuant to this MPC will not 

exceed $100,000.00.  

7.3. Travel Expenses. It is anticipated that all travel expenses will be included in the base cost of the 

Providing Party’s services, and unless otherwise specifically set forth in an applicable work order 

contract, the Providing Party will not be separately reimbursed for travel and subsistence expenses 

incurred by the Providing Party in performing any work order contract. In those cases where the State 

agrees to reimburse travel expenses, such expenses will be reimbursed in the same manner and in no 

greater amount than provided in the current "MnDOT Travel Regulations” a copy of which is on file with 

and available from the MnDOT District Office. The Local Government will not be reimbursed for travel 

and subsistence expenses incurred outside of Minnesota unless it has received the State’s prior written 

approval for such travel. 

7.4. Payment.  

7.4.1. Generally. The Requesting Party will pay the Providing Party as specified in the applicable work 

order, and will make prompt payment in accordance with Minnesota law. 

7.4.2. Payment by the Local Government.  



  MnDOT Contract Number:   1028504 

 

Page 7 of 13 
 

CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017) 

 
 

7.4.2.1. The Local Government will make payment to the order of the Commissioner of 

Transportation.  

7.4.2.2. IMPORTANT NOTE: PAYMENT MUST REFERENCE THE “MNDOT 

CONTRACT NUMBER” SHOWN ON THE FACE PAGE OF THIS CONTRACT 

AND THE “INVOICE NUMBER” ON THE INVOICE RECEIVED FROM 

MNDOT.  

7.4.2.3. Remit payment to the address below: 

MnDOT  

Attn: Cash Accounting 

RE: MnDOT Contract Number 1028504. 

Mail Stop 215 

395 John Ireland Blvd 

St. Paul, MN 55155 

 

7.4.3. Payment by the State. 

7.4.3.1. Generally. The State will promptly pay the Local Government after the Local 

Government presents an itemized invoice for the services actually performed and the 

State's Authorized Representative accepts the invoiced services. Invoices must be 

submitted as specified in the applicable work order, but no more frequently than monthly.  

7.4.3.2. Retainage for Professional and Technical Services. For work orders for professional and 

technical services, as required by Minn. Stat. § 16C.08, subd. 2(10), no more than 90 

percent of the amount due under any work order contract may be paid until the final 

product of the work order contract has been reviewed by the State’s authorized 

representative. The balance due will be paid when the State’s authorized representative 

determines that the Local Government has satisfactorily fulfilled all the terms of the work 

order contract.  

8. Conditions of Payment 

All work performed by the Providing Party under a work order contract must be performed to the Requesting 

Party’s satisfaction, as determined at the sole and reasonable discretion of the Requesting Party’s Authorized 

Representative and in accordance with all applicable federal and state laws, rules, and regulations. The Providing 

Party will not receive payment for work found by the State to be unsatisfactory or performed in violation of 

federal or state law. 

9. Local Government’s Authorized Representative and Project Manager; Authority to Execute Work Order 

Contracts 

9.1. The Local Government’s Authorized Representative for administering this master contract is the Local 

Government’s Engineer, and the Engineer has the responsibility to monitor the Local Government’s 

performance. The Local Government’s Authorized Representative is also authorized to execute work 

order contracts on behalf of the Local Government without approval of each proposed work order 

contract by its governing body. 

9.2. The Local Government’s Project Manager will be identified in each work order contract.  

10. State’s Authorized Representative and Project Manager 

10.1. The State's Authorized Representative for this master contract is the District State Aid Engineer, who has 

the responsibility to monitor the State’s performance. 

10.2. The State’s Project Manager will be identified in each work order contract.  



  MnDOT Contract Number:   1028504 

 

Page 8 of 13 
 

CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017) 

 
 

11. Assignment, Amendments, Waiver, and Contract Complete 

11.1. Assignment. Neither party may assign or transfer any rights or obligations under this MPC or any work 

order contract without the prior consent of the other and a fully executed Assignment Contract, executed 

and approved by the same parties who executed and approved this MPC, or their successors in office. 

11.2. Amendments. Any amendment to this master contract or any work order contract must be in writing and 

will not be effective until it has been executed and approved by the same parties who executed and 

approved the original contract, or their successors in office. 

11.3. Waiver. If a party fails to enforce any provision of this master contract or any work order contract, that 

failure does not waive the provision or the party’s right to subsequently enforce it. 

11.4. Contract Complete. This master contract and any work order contract contain all negotiations and 

contracts between the State and the Local Government. No other understanding regarding this master 

contract or any work order contract issued hereunder, whether written or oral may be used to bind either 

party. 

12. Liability.  

Each party will be responsible for its own acts and omissions to the extent provided by law. The Local 

Government’s liability is governed by Minn. Stat. chapter 466 and other applicable law. The State’s liability is 

governed by Minn. Stat. section 3.736 and other applicable law. This clause will not be construed to bar any legal 

remedies a party may have for the other party’s failure to fulfill its obligations under this master contract or any 

work order contract. Neither party agrees to assume any environmental liability on behalf of the other party. A 

Providing Party under any work order is acting only as a “Contractor” to the Requesting Party, as the term 

“Contractor” is defined in Minn. Stat. §115B.03 (subd. 10), and is entitled to the protections afforded to a 

“Contractor” by the Minnesota Environmental Response and Liability Act. The parties specifically intend that 

Minn. Stat. §471.59 subd. 1a will apply to any work undertaken under this MPC and any work order issued 

hereunder. 

13. State Audits 

Under Minn. Stat. § 16C.05, subd. 5, the party’s books, records, documents, and accounting procedures and 

practices relevant to any work order contract are subject to examination by the parties and by the State Auditor or 

Legislative Auditor, as appropriate, for a minimum of six years from the end of this MPC. 

14. Government Data Practices and Intellectual Property  

14.1. Government Data Practices. The Local Government and State must comply with the Minnesota 

Government Data Practices Act, Minn. Stat. Ch. 13, as it applies to all data provided by the State under 

this MPC and any work order contract, and as it applies to all data created, collected, received, stored, 

used, maintained, or disseminated by the Local Government under this MPC and any work order contract. 

The civil remedies of Minn. Stat. § 13.08 apply to the release of the data referred to in this clause by 

either the Local Government or the State. 

14.2. Intellectual Property Rights 

14.2.1. Intellectual Property Rights. The Requesting Party will own all rights, title, and interest in all of 

the intellectual property rights, including copyrights, patents, trade secrets, trademarks, and 

service marks in the Works and Documents created and paid for under work order contracts. 

Works means all inventions, improvements, discoveries (whether or not patentable), databases, 

computer programs, reports, notes, studies, photographs, negatives, designs, drawings, 

specifications, materials, tapes, and disks conceived, reduced to practice, created or originated by 

the Providing Party, its employees, agents, and subcontractors, either individually or jointly with 

others in the performance of this master contract or any work order contract. Works includes 

“Documents.” Documents are the originals of any databases, computer programs, reports, notes, 



  MnDOT Contract Number:   1028504 

 

Page 9 of 13 
 

CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017) 

 
 

studies, photographs, negatives, designs, drawings, specifications, materials, tapes, disks, or other 

materials, whether in tangible or electronic forms, prepared by the Providing Party, its employees, 

agents, or contractors, in the performance of a work order contract. The Documents will be the 

exclusive property of the Requesting Party and all such Documents must be immediately returned 

to the Requesting Party by the Providing Party upon completion or cancellation of the work order 

contract. To the extent possible, those Works eligible for copyright protection under the United 

States Copyright Act will be deemed to be “works made for hire.” The Providing Party 

Government assigns all right, title, and interest it may have in the Works and the Documents to 

the Requesting Party. The Providing Party must, at the request of the Requesting Party, execute 

all papers and perform all other acts necessary to transfer or record the Requesting Party’s 

ownership interest in the Works and Documents. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Requesting 

Party grants the Providing Party an irrevocable and royalty-free license to use such intellectual 

property for its own non-commercial purposes, including dissemination to political subdivisions 

of the state of Minnesota and to transportation-related agencies such as the American Association 

of State Highway and Transportation Officials. 

14.2.2. Obligations with Respect to Intellectual Property.  

14.2.2.1. Notification. Whenever any invention, improvement, or discovery (whether or not 

patentable) is made or conceived for the first time or actually or constructively reduced 

to practice by the Providing Party, including its employees and subcontractors, in the 

performance of the work order contract, the Providing Party will immediately give the 

Requesting Party’s Authorized Representative written notice thereof, and must 

promptly furnish the Authorized Representative with complete information and/or 

disclosure thereon. 

14.2.2.2. Representation. The Providing Party must perform all acts, and take all steps necessary 

to ensure that all intellectual property rights in the Works and Documents are the sole 

property of the Requesting Party, and that neither Providing Party nor its employees, 

agents or contractors retain any interest in and to the Works and Documents.  

15. Affirmative Action 

The State intends to carry out its responsibility for requiring affirmative action by its Contractors, pursuant to 

Minn. Stat. §363A.36. Pursuant to that Statute, the Local Government is encouraged to prepare and implement an 

affirmative action plan for the employment of minority persons, women, and the qualified disabled, and submit 

such plan to the Commissioner of the Minnesota Department of Human Rights. In addition, when the Local 

Government lets a contract for the performance of work under a work order issued pursuant to this MPC, it must 

include the following in the bid or proposal solicitation and any contracts awarded as a result thereof: 

15.1. Covered Contracts and Contractors. If the Contract exceeds $100,000 and the Contractor employed more 

than 40 full-time employees on a single working day during the previous 12 months in Minnesota or in 

the state where it has its principle place of business, then the Contractor must comply with the 

requirements of Minn. Stat. § 363A.36 and Minn. R. Parts 5000.3400-5000.3600. A Contractor covered 

by Minn. Stat. § 363A.36 because it employed more than 40 full-time employees in another state and 

does not have a certificate of compliance, must certify that it is in compliance with federal affirmative 

action requirements. 

15.2. Minn. Stat. § 363A.36. Minn. Stat. § 363A.36 requires the Contractor to have an affirmative action plan 

for the employment of minority persons, women, and qualified disabled individuals approved by the 

Minnesota Commissioner of Human Rights (“Commissioner”) as indicated by a certificate of compliance. 

The law addresses suspension or revocation of a certificate of compliance and contract consequences in 

that event. A contract awarded without a certificate of compliance may be voided.  

15.3. Minn. R. Parts 5000.3400-5000.3600.  



  MnDOT Contract Number:   1028504 

 

Page 10 of 13 
 

CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017) 

 
 

15.3.1. General. Minn. R. Parts 5000.3400-5000.3600 implement Minn. Stat. § 363A.36. These rules 

include, but are not limited to, criteria for contents, approval, and implementation of affirmative 

action plans; procedures for issuing certificates of compliance and criteria for determining a 

contractor’s compliance status; procedures for addressing deficiencies, sanctions, and notice and 

hearing; annual compliance reports; procedures for compliance review; and contract 

consequences for non-compliance. The specific criteria for approval or rejection of an affirmative 

action plan are contained in various provisions of Minn. R. Parts 5000.3400-5000.3600 including, 

but not limited to, parts 5000.3420-5000.3500 and 5000.3552-5000.3559.  

15.3.2. Disabled Workers. The Contractor must comply with the following affirmative action 

requirements for disabled workers:  

15.3.2.1. The Contractor must not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 

employment because of physical or mental disability in regard to any position for 

which the employee or applicant for employment is qualified. The Contractor agrees to 

take affirmative action to employ, advance in employment, and otherwise treat 

qualified disabled persons without discrimination based upon their physical or mental 

disability in all employment practices such as the following: employment, upgrading, 

demotion or transfer, recruitment, advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or 

other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship. 

15.3.2.2. The Contractor agrees to comply with the rules and relevant orders of the Minnesota 

Department of Human Rights issued pursuant to the Minnesota Human Rights Act. 

15.3.2.3. In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the requirements of this clause, 

actions for noncompliance may be taken in accordance with Minn. Stat. Section 

363A.36, and the rules and relevant orders of the Minnesota Department of Human 

Rights issued pursuant to the Minnesota Human Rights Act. 

15.3.2.4. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and 

applicants for employment, notices in a form to be prescribed by the commissioner of 

the Minnesota Department of Human Rights. Such notices must state the Contractor's 

obligation under the law to take affirmative action to employ and advance in 

employment qualified disabled employees and applicants for employment, and the 

rights of applicants and employees. 

15.3.2.5. The Contractor must notify each labor union or representative of workers with which it 

has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract understanding, that the 

Contractor is bound by the terms of Minn. Stat. Section 363A.36, of the Minnesota 

Human Rights Act and is committed to take affirmative action to employ and advance 

in employment physically and mentally disabled persons. 

15.3.3. Consequences. The consequences for the Contractor’s failure to implement its affirmative action 

plan or make a good faith effort to do so include, but are not limited to, suspension or revocation of 

a certificate of compliance by the Commissioner, refusal by the Commissioner to approve 

subsequent plans, and termination of all or part of this contract by the Commissioner or the State. 

15.3.4. Certification. The Contractor hereby certifies that it is in compliance with the requirements of Minn. 

Stat. § 363A.36 and Minn. R. Parts 5000.3400-5000.3600 and is aware of the consequences for 

noncompliance. 

16. Workers’ Compensation  

Each party will be responsible for its own employees for any workers compensation claims. This MPC, and any 

work order contracts issued hereunder, are not intended to constitute an interchange of government employees 

under Minn. Stat. §15.53. To the extent that this MPC, or any work order issued hereunder, is determined to be 



  MnDOT Contract Number:   1028504 

 

Page 11 of 13 
 

CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017) 

 
 

subject to Minn. Stat. §15.53, such statute will control to the extent of any conflict between the contract and the 

statute.  

17. Publicity  

17.1. Publicity. Any publicity regarding the subject matter of a work order contract where the State is the 

Requesting Party must identify the State as the sponsoring agency and must not be released without prior 

written approval from the State’s Authorized Representative. For purposes of this provision, publicity 

includes notices, informational pamphlets, press releases, research, reports, signs, and similar public 

notices prepared by or for the Local Government individually or jointly with others, or any 

subcontractors, with respect to the program, publications, or services provided resulting from a work 

order contract.  

17.2. Data Practices Act. Section 17.1 is not intended to override the Local Government’s responsibilities 

under the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act. 

18. Governing Law, Jurisdiction, and Venue 

Minnesota law, without regard to its choice-of-law provisions, governs this master contract and all work order 

contracts. Venue for all legal proceedings out of this master contract or any work order contracts, or the breach of 

any such contracts, must be in the appropriate state or federal court with competent jurisdiction in Ramsey 

County, Minnesota. 

19. Prompt Payment; Payment to Subcontractors 

The parties must make prompt payment of their obligations in accordance with applicable law. As required by 

Minn. Stat. § 16A.1245, when the Local Government lets a contract for work pursuant to any work order, the 

Local Government must require its contractor to pay all subcontractors, less any retainage, within 10 calendar 

days of the prime contractor's receipt of payment from the Local Government for undisputed services provided by 

the subcontractor(s) and must pay interest at the rate of one and one-half percent per month or any part of a month 

to the subcontractor(s) on any undisputed amount not paid on time to the subcontractor(s). 

20. Minn. Stat. § 181.59. The Local Government will comply with the provisions of Minn. Stat. § 181.59 which 

requires: Every contract for or on behalf of the state of Minnesota, or any county, city, town, township, school, 

school district, or any other district in the state, for materials, supplies, or construction shall contain provisions by 

which the Contractor agrees: (1) That, in the hiring of common or skilled labor for the performance of any work 

under any contract, or any subcontract, no contractor, material supplier, or vendor, shall, by reason of race, creed, 

or color, discriminate against the person or persons who are citizens of the United States or resident aliens who 

are qualified and available to perform the work to which the employment relates; (2) That no contractor, material 

supplier, or vendor, shall, in any manner, discriminate against, or intimidate, or prevent the employment of any 

person or persons identified in clause (1) of this section, or on being hired, prevent, or conspire to prevent, the 

person or persons from the performance of work under any contract on account of race, creed, or color; (3) That a 

violation of this section is a misdemeanor; and (4) That this contract may be canceled or terminated by the state, 

county, city, town, school board, or any other person authorized to grant the contracts for employment, and all 

money due, or to become due under the contract, may be forfeited for a second or any subsequent violation of the 

terms or conditions of this contract.  

21. Termination; Suspension 

21.1. Termination by the State for Convenience. The State or commissioner of Administration may cancel this 

MPC and any work order contracts at any time, with or without cause, upon 30 days written notice to the 

Local Government. Upon termination, the Local Government and the State will be entitled to payment, 

determined on a pro rata basis, for services satisfactorily performed. 

21.2. Termination by the Local Government for Convenience. The Local Government may cancel this MPC 

and any work order contracts at any time, with or without cause, upon 30 days written notice to the State. 



  MnDOT Contract Number:   1028504 

 

Page 12 of 13 
 

CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017) 

 
 

Upon termination, the Local Government and the State will be entitled to payment, determined on a pro 

rata basis, for services satisfactorily performed. 

21.3. Termination for Insufficient Funding. The State may immediately terminate or suspend this MPC and 

any work order contract if it does not obtain funding from the Minnesota legislature or other funding 

source; or if funding cannot be continued at a level sufficient to allow for the payment of the services 

covered here. Termination or suspension must be by written or fax notice to the Local Government. The 

State is not obligated to pay for any services that are provided after notice and effective date of 

termination or suspension. However, the Local Government will be entitled to payment, determined on a 

pro rata basis, for services satisfactorily performed to the extent that funds are available. The State will 

not be assessed any penalty if the master contract or work order is terminated because of the decision of 

the Minnesota legislature or other funding source, not to appropriate funds. The State must provide the 

Local Government notice of the lack of funding within a reasonable time of the State’s receiving that 

notice. 

22. Data Disclosure 

Under Minn. Stat. §270C.65, subd. 3, and other applicable law, the Local Government consents to disclosure of 

its federal employer tax identification number, and/or Minnesota tax identification number, already provided to 

the State, to federal and state tax agencies and state personnel involved in the payment of state obligations. These 

identification numbers may be used in the enforcement of federal and state tax laws which could result in action 

requiring the Local Government to file state tax returns and pay delinquent state tax liabilities, if any.  

23. Defense of Claims and Lawsuits 

If any lawsuit or claim is filed by a third party (including but not limited to the Local Government’s contractors 

and subcontractors), arising out of trunk highway work performed pursuant to a valid work order issued under this 

MPC, the Local Government will, at the discretion of and upon the request of the State, tender the defense of such 

claims to the State or allow the State to participate in the defense of such claims. The Local Government will, 

however, be solely responsible for defending any lawsuit or claim, or any portion thereof, when the claim or cause 

of action asserted is based on its own acts or omissions in performing or supervising the work. The Local 

Government will not purport to represent the State in any litigation, settlement, or alternative dispute resolution 

process. The State will not be responsible for any judgment entered against the Local Government, and will not be 

bound by the terms of any settlement entered into by the Local Government except with the written approval of 

the Attorney General and the Commissioner of Transportation and pursuant to applicable law. 

24. Additional Provisions 

 

[The balance of this page has intentionally been left blank – signature page follows] 

  



  MnDOT Contract Number:   1028504 

 

Page 13 of 13 
 

CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017) 

 
 

 

  

LOCAL GOVERNMENT   COMMISSIONER OF TRANSPORTATION 

The Local Government certifies that the appropriate 

person(s) have executed the contract on behalf of the 

Local Government as required by applicable 

ordinance, resolution, or charter provision. 

   

   By:  

By:    (with delegated authority) 

Title:  
 

Title 
Assistant Commissioner or 

Assistant Division Director 

Date:   Date:  

     

By:  

 

 

COMMISSIONER OF ADMINISTRATION 

As delegated to Materials Management Division 

Title   By:  

Date:   Date:   

     

 











WHKS & Co. Quote Date: July 31, 2017 @ 9:00 a.m. WHKS #8104.17

Engineers Estimate Rochester Sand and Gravel S.L. Contractoing, Inc. Elcor Construction

4105 East River Road NE 2510 Schuster Lane NW 123 Carlton St. SW

Rochester, MN  55906 Rochester, MN  55901 Rochester, MN  55902

ITEM UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL
Mill Bituminous Pavement 3,200 SY $3.00 $9,600.00 $3.20 $10,240.00 $4.00 $12,800.00 $0.00

Wearing Course Mixture SPWEB230B (2") 900 Tons $78.00 $70,200.00 $68.80 $61,920.00 $71.00 $63,900.00 $0.00

Adjust Gate Valve 12 Each $500.00 $6,000.00 $400.00 $4,800.00 $600.00 $7,200.00 $0.00

Adjust Storm M.H. 2 Each $750.00 $1,500.00 $950.00 $1,900.00 $1,150.00 $2,300.00 $0.00

Adjust Sanitry M.H. 3 Each $900.00 $2,700.00 $1,000.00 $3,000.00 $1,200.00 $3,600.00 $0.00

Total $90,000.00 $81,860.00 $89,800.00 NO BID

2017 Pavement Maintenance - 3rd Street NE

Kasson, MN

QUANTITY



CITY OF KASSON 

RESOLUTION #8.x-17 

 
A RESOLUTION AWARDING AND APPROVING  

2017 CONCRETE MAINTENANCE QUOTES 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Kasson solicited, received and opened quotes 

for 2017 CONCRETE MAINTENANCE PROJECTS on August 8, 2017; and, 

 

WHEREAS, quotes received by the City of Kasson must be acted upon within 30 days of 

opening; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the bids received for the project are favorable. 

 

Contractor Amount 

Budgeted Amount $ 40,000.00 

WILL BE AVAILABLE AT MEETING $  

 $  

 $  

 $  

 $  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Kasson that 

the low quote submitted by the contractor below in the amount below  

 

 $  

 

for 2017 CONCRETE MAINTENANCE PROJECTS is hereby approved. 

 

Adopted by the Kasson City Council this 9
th

 day of August, 2017. 

 

 

 

      _______________________________ 

      Mayor Chris McKern 

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

_______________________________ 

Linda Rappe, City Clerk 

 
 

 

The motion for the adoption of the foregoing resolution was made by Council Member ________ and duly 

seconded by Council Member _______.  Upon a vote being taken, the following members voted in favor 

thereof: ___________________________________________.  Those against same: ____ 

 



1 

 

PETITION AND WAIVER AGREEMENT 

 

by and between 

 

THE CITY OF KASSON, MINNESOTA, 

 

and 

 

        

 

 



 1 

 THIS AGREEMENT made this   day of   , 2017, by and between the 

City of Kasson, a Minnesota municipal corporation, (the “City”) and        

 , a private person (the “Owner”). 

 WITNESSETH: 

 WHEREAS, the Owner is the fee owner of certain real property located in the City of 

Kasson and legally described on Exhibit A attached hereto (the “Subject Property”);  

 WHEREAS, the City's Ordinances, including but not limited to Chapter 53, are intended 

to assure the continued integrity of all aspects of the City's water and wastewater systems; 

 WHEREAS, the City has identified a malfunction in the Owner's connection to the City's 

water and/or wastewater systems that threatens the integrity of these systems. In the interest of 

quickly restoring the integrity of the City's systems, the City is willing to contract for the repairs 

(the "Repair Project") to the Subject Property and to specially assess the cost of the repairs to the 

Subject Property;  

 WHEREAS, the Owner desires the City to proceed with the Repair Project without notice 

of hearing or hearing on the Repair Project, and without notice of hearing or hearings on the 

special assessments levied against the Subject Property to finance the Repair Project;  

 WHEREAS, the City is willing to proceed with the Repair Project in accordance with the 

request by the Owner and without such notices or hearings, provided the assurances and 

covenants hereinafter stated are made by the Owner to ensure that the City will have valid and 

collectable special assessments as they relate to the Subject Property;  

 WHEREAS, were it not for the assurances and covenants hereinafter provided, the City 

would not proceed with the Repair Project without such notices and hearings and is doing so 

solely at the behest, and for the benefit, of the Owner; 



 2 

 NOW, THEREFORE, ON THE BASIS OF THE COVENANTS AND OBLIGATIONS 

CONTAINED HEREIN, THE PARTIES HERETO AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Owner represents and warrants it is the fee owner of the Subject Property, that it has 

full legal power and authority to encumber the Subject Property as herein provided, that 

in doing so it is not in violation of the terms or conditions of any instrument or agreement 

of any nature to which the Owner is bound or which relates in any manner to the Subject 

Property and that there are no other liens or encumbrances against the Subject Property 

except those listed in Exhibit B attached hereto. 

 

2. The Owner hereby petitions the City for the installation of the Repair Project.   

 

3. The Owner consents to the City levying special assessments for the Repair Project 

against the Subject Property in accordance with Minn. Stat. Section 429.061.  The 

principal amount of the special assessment for the Repair Project is $              .   

 

4. The Owner waives notice of hearing and hearing pursuant to Minn. Stat. Section 429.031, 

on the Repair Project and notice of hearing and hearing on the special assessments levied 

to finance the Repair Project pursuant to Minn. Stat. Section 429.061 and specifically 

requests that the Repair Project be constructed and special assessments be levied against 

the Subject Property therefor without hearings. 

 

5. The Owner waives the right to appeal the levy of special assessments in accordance with 

this Agreement pursuant to Minn. Stat. Section 429.081 and further specifically agrees 

with respect to such special assessments against the Subject Property that: 

 

 a. All requirements of Minn. Stat. Section 429 and City ordinance and policy with 

which the City does not comply are hereby waived by the Owner; and 

 

 b. The increase in fair market value of the Subject Property resulting from the 

installation of the Repair Project will be at least equal to the amount of the special 

assessments levied against the Subject Property, and that such increase in fair 

market value is a special benefit to the Subject Property. 

 

6. The special assessments levied against the Subject Property shall be payable over a 

period of 15 years, and shall bear interest at a rate equal to the Federal Reserve Prime 

Rate plus 1.5% as of the date of the special assessment roll adoption by the City Council. 

The first installment of principal and interest shall be included in the first tax rolls 

completed after adoption of the resolution levying the special assessment.  

 

7. The covenants, waivers and agreements contained in this Agreement shall bind the 

Owner and its successors and assigns and shall run with the Subject Property.  It is the 

intent of the parties hereto that this Agreement be in a form which is recordable among 

the land records of Dodge County, Minnesota, and the Owner agrees to make any 



 3 

changes in this Agreement which may be necessary to effect the recording and filing of 

this Agreement against the title of the Subject Property. 

 

8. This Agreement shall terminate upon the final payment of all special assessments levied 

against the Subject Property regarding the Repair Project.  The City agrees to execute and 

deliver such documents, in recordable form, as are necessary to extinguish its rights 

hereunder upon receipt of such final payment. 

 

9. Owner acknowledges that the contractor performing the Repair Project shall guarantee its 

work against defects in workmanship and material for a period of two (2) years from the 

date of the certification of compliance by the City, or from Owner's acceptance of the 

work, whichever occurs first.   

 

 

[The rest of this page is intentionally left blank.] 



 4 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands the day and year first written 

above. 

    OWNER 

By:        

 

By:        

 

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 

    ) ss 

COUNTY OF DODGE ) 

 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of 

____________, 2017, by    ______________________, the Owner of the 

Subject Property. 

  

 

 

  

       Notary Public 

 

 

 

CITY OF KASSON 

 

By:        

 Its Mayor 

By:        

 Its City Administrator 

 

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 

    ) ss 

COUNTY OF DODGE ) 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ______ day of 

______________, 2017, by Chris McKern and Theresa Coleman, the Mayor and City 

Administrator, respectively, of the City of Kasson, a municipal corporation under the laws of the 

state of Minnesota, on behalf of the City. 

  

 

 

   

 Notary Public 

 

 



 5 

 

Exhibit A 

To Petition and Waiver Agreement 

 

The legal description of the Subject Property is as follows: 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 6 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit B 

To Petition and Waiver Agreement 

 

 

The Subject Property is subject to the following encumbrances and no others: 

 

 








	A. Agenda for 8.9.17
	A.2.a Minutes from 7.26.17
	A.2.b Claims to pay after 7-26-17 Meeting
	A.2.f 8.X-17 Resn Certifying Delinquent Claims to the County
	A.2.g Semcac Agreement
	A.2.h 8.x-17 Resolution waiving noise hours for Fire Department special event
	A.2.i 8.x-17 Resolution waiving noise hours for 504 Tavern special event
	G.2 Audit Services
	G.3 Set Budget adn Levy Date - Change 2nd meeting in December
	J.1.a 8.X-17 Resolution Approving  Master Partnership Contract
	J.1.b Master Partnership Contract 04-20-2017
	J.1.c MNDOT_Table_of_Technical_Services
	J.2 3rd Street NE_Quote Tab
	J.3 Accepting 2017 Concrete Maintenance Quotes
	L.1 Petiton and Waiver
	M.1 Pay Study Update
	M.2 July Police Stats

